
 

TUPELO REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 

JANUARY 20, 2026 AT 6:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS | CITY HALL 

AGENDA 

INVOCATION:                             COUNCIL MEMBER BENTLEY NOLAN 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:       COUNCIL PRESIDENT JANET GASTON 

CALL TO ORDER:                      COUNCIL PRESIDENT JANET GASTON 

 

CONFIRMATION OR AMENDMENT TO THE AGENDA AND AGENDA ORDER 

PROCLAMATIONS, RECOGNITIONS AND REPORTS AGENDA 

PROCLAMATIONS 

RECOGNITION GIRL/BOY SCOUTS 

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 

PUBLIC RECOGNITION 

MAYOR'S REMARKS 

(CLOSE REGULAR MEETING OPEN PUBLIC AGENDA) 

PUBLIC AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

THOMAS HARRISON 

SCOTT BROWN 

MITCHELL JENKINS 

APPEALS 

CITIZEN HEARING 



(CLOSE PUBLIC AGENDA AND OPEN REGULAR SESSION) 

ACTION AGENDA 

ROUTINE AGENDA 

1. IN THE MATTER OF REVIEW / APPROVE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES OF 

JANUARY 6, 2026 

2. IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH 

COUNCIL MEMBER LYNN BRYAN 

COUNCIL MEMBER JANET GASTON  

COUNCIL MEMBER TRAVIS BEARD 

3. AN ORDER ACKNOWLEDGING THE SELECTION OF CADENCE BANK TO SERVE 

AS MUNICIPAL DEPOSITORY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND CHIEF 

FINANCIAL OFFICER TO ENTER INTO A DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT WITH THE 

SELECTED DEPOSITORY SUBJECT TO LATER RATIFICATION BY THE 

GOVERNING AUTHORITIES OF THE CITY OF TUPELO KH 

4. IN THE MATTER OF THE 2026 MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR  

CONTINUATION AS A MISSISSIPPI MAIN STREET ASSOCIATION  DESIGNATED 

COMMUNITY LR 

5. IN THE MATTER OF AWARD RFQ NUMBER 2025-044PW TO COOK COGGIN 

ENGINEERS FOR TARGET ROAD WATER PROJECT  AC 

6. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR THE TUPELO AQUATIC 

CENTER POOL LINER 

7. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AWARD FOR THE BID FOR THE  BALLARD 

PARK LAKESHORE IMPROVEMENTS. AF 

8. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR THE BALLARD  PARK 

LAKESHORE IMPROVEMENTS. AF 

9. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AWARD FOR THE RFQ FOR  TENNIS 

INSTRUCTION AND FACILITY OPERATIONS FOR ROB  LEAKE CITY PARK. AF 

10. IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AWARD OF THE TENNIS  INSTRUCTION 

AND FACILITY OPERATIONS CONTRACT FOR ROB  LEAKE CITY PARK AF 

11. PROOF OF PUBLICATION OF THE ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 

AMENDING DEVELOPMENT CODE CHAPTER 5 – OVERLAY DISTRICTS BY 



ADDING 5.12 – PARKHILL RESIDENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD CONSERVATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT (TA25-02.01) BL 

 

(CLOSE REGULAR SESSION) 

STUDY AGENDA 

S1. IN THE MATTER OF AN ORDINANCE TO PROHIBIT THE USE, POSSESSION, 

PURCHASE, DISTRIBUTION, SALE OR DISPLAY FOR SALE OF KRATOM AND 

KRATOM PRODUCTS SR 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

ADJOURNMENT 



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor And City Council 

FROM: Sandy Shumaker, Council Clerk 

DATE January 20, 2026 

SUBJECT:  In The Matter of Review/Approve City Council Meeting Minutes of  

January 6, 2026 
  

 

Request:  Review and Approve 

 



AGENDA REQUEST 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO 

DATE 01/20/2026 

SUBJECT: IN THE MATTER OF BILL PAY KH

Request: 

Council Member Lynn Bryan 

Council Member Janet Gaston 

Council Member Travis Beard 



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Kim Hanna, CFO/City Clerk 

DATE January 12, 2026 

SUBJECT:  AN ORDER ACKNOWLEDGING THE SELECTION OF CADENCE BANK 

TO SERVE AS MUNICIPAL DEPOSITORY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE 

MAYOR AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER TO ENTER INTO A 

DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT WITH THE SELECTED DEPOSITORY 

SUBJECT TO LATER RATIFICATION BY THE GOVERNING 

AUTHORITIES OF THE CITY OF TUPELO KH 
  

 

Request:  

The City of Tupelo solicited bids from qualified financial institutions to serve as municipal 

depository for the next term. The City received timely bids from six (6) financial institutions. 

Due to a potential conflict of interest between a member of the Tupelo City Council and one of 

the responding financial institutions, the sealed bids were submitted to the Mississippi State 

Treasurer for evaluation and selection.  

 

The State Treasurer has selected Cadence Bank to serve as Municipal Depository for the next 

two-year term, beginning on February 1, 2026. The attached Order acknowledges such selection 

and authorizes the execution of a Depository Agreement with Cadence Bank for such purposes.  



ORDER 
AN ORDER ACKNOWLEDGING THE SELECTION OF CADENCE BANK TO SERVE 

AS MUNICIPAL DEPOSITORY AND TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR AND CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER TO ENTER INTO A DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT WITH THE 
SELECTED DEPOSITORY SUBJECT TO RATIFICATION BY THE CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF TUPELO 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2025, the City Council of the City of Tupelo authorized 

the solicitation of bids from qualified financial institutions for selection to serve as municipal 
depository for the next term, beginning on February 1, 2026; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to such solicitation, their were six (6) timely respondents to such 
solicitation; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Miss. Code Ann. § 27-105-305 (1972, as amended), the City of 
Tupelo submitted the selection of its municipal depository to the State Treasurer so that it may 
avoid the creation of any potential conflict of interest between a member of the Tupelo City 
Council and a responding depository; and  

WHEREAS, the State Treasurer received and reviewed the bids, making the 
determination that Cadence Bank be selected as the best bid to serve as the City’s primary 
depository for a term of two-years beginning on February 1, 2026 and ending on January 31, 
2028, and 

WHEREAS, the State Treasurer further stated that the City may utilize the services of 
Renasant Bank, Guaranty Bank, BankPlus, Community Bank, and Regions Bank to serve as 
depository for the investment of any excess municipal funds, as the need may arise.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Tupelo 
as follows: 

1. The selection by the State Treasurer of Cadence Bank to serve as municipal depository
for the City of Tupelo as Stated in the letter from the State Treasurer attached hereto as
Exhibit “A” is hereby acknowledged, and same shall be spread upon the minutes.

2. The Mayor and Chief Financial Officer are authorized to execute a Depository
Agreement with Cadence Bank on behalf of the City of Tupelo.

3. The form of the Depository Agreement with Cadence Bank attached hereto as “Exhibit
B” is hereby approved, and the final form of the agreement, with any future
modifications, is subject to subsequent ratification by the City Council.

4. The Mayor and Chief Financial Officer are authorized to enter into depository
agreements with Renasant Bank, Guaranty Bank, BankPlus, Community Bank, and
Regions Bank for the investment of any excess municipal funds, with terms substantially
similar to those contained in “Exhibit A,” subject to subsequent ratification of those
agreements by the City Council.
The foregoing Order was proposed in a motion by Council Member

___________________ seconded by Council Member __________________ and with there 
being no request that it be read aloud, the question was brought to a vote with results as follows: 



Councilmember Mims voted _______________ 
Councilmember Bryan voted _______________ 
Councilmember Beard voted _______________ 
Councilmember Davis voted _______________ 
Councilmember Nolan voted _______________ 
Councilmember Gaston voted _______________ 
Councilmember Jones voted  _______________ 

WHEREUPON, the foregoing Order was declared, passed and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Council on this the _________day of ___________________, 2026. 

CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI 

By: ________________________________ 
       LYNN BRYAN 

 City Council Vice-President 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
SANDRA SHUMAKER, Clerk of Council 

APPROVED: 

____________________________________ 
TODD JORDAN, Mayor 

_____________________________________ 
DATE 



EXHIBIT "A"



City of Tupelo
Depository Bid Results
Analysis as of 1/14/26

Fed Funds Target Range 3.5%-3.75%

Institution
Term of 

Bid Bid Rate
Rate 
Type

Current 
Rate 

Calculation
Term of 

Bid Bid Rate
Rate 
Type

Current 
Rate 

Calculation
Term of 

Bid Bid Rate
Rate 
Type

Current 
Rate 

Calculation
Term of 

Bid Bid Rate
Rate 
Type

Current 
Rate 

Calculati
on

Guaranty Bank - Insured 
Cash Sweep

2-4 Year Fed Funds
Target minus 

.15%

Variable 3.35% 2-Year 3.54% Fixed 3.54% 3-Year 3.31% Fixed 3.31% 4-Year 3.08% Fixed 3.08%

Guaranty Bank - State 
Collateral Pool Program

2-4 Year Fed Funds
Target minus 

1.5%

Variable 2.00% 2-Year 2.25% Fixed 2.25% 3-Year 2.00% Fixed 2.00% 4-Year 1.75% Fixed 1.75%

Cadence Bank - no monthly 
fee

2-3 Year Fed Funds
target minus 

75 basis 
points w no 

fee

Variable 2.75% 2-Year  265 basis 
points w no 
monthly fee

Fixed 2.65% 3-year 245 basis 
points w no 
monthly fee

Fixed 2.45% 4-Year N/A Fixed N/A

Cadence Bank - w monthly 
fee

2-3 Year Fed Funds
target minus 

50 basis 
points w 

$500 monthyl 
fee

Variable 3.00% 2-Year 290 basis 
points w 

$500 monthly 
fee 

Fixed 2.90% 3-year 270 basis 
points w 

$500 
monthly fee 

Fixed 2.70% 4-Year N/A Fixed N/A

Renasant Bank 2-4 Year Fed Funds
Upper target 
rate minus 

.375%

Variable 3.375% 2-Year 2.875% Fixed 2.875% 3-year 2.75% Fixed 2.75% 4-Year 2.50% Fixed 2.50%

Renasant - Insured Cash 
Sweep

3-year Fed Funds 
Upper target 
minus .75%

Variable 3.00% 2-Year N/A Fixed N/A 3-year N/A Fixed N/A 4-Year N/A Fixed N/A

Regions Bank 2-4 Year Fed Funds
target minus 

125 basis 
points

Variable 3.00% 2-Year N/A Fixed N/A 3-year N/A Fixed N/A 4-Year N/A Fixed N/A

BankPlus N/A N/A Variable N/A 2-Year 2.83% Fixed 2.83% 3-year N/A Fixed N/A 4-Year N/A Fixed N/A

Community Bank 2-Year Fed Funds 
target minus 

150 basis 
points 

Variable 2.00% 2-Year N/A Fixed N/A 3-year N/A Fixed N/A 4-Year N/A Fixed N/A

Interest Checking Interest CheckingInterest Checking Interest Checking



 DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT 

This Depository Agreement (“the Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this the 1st 
day of February, 2026, by and between the CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI, a municipal 
corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Mississippi (“the City”) and 
CADENCE BANK, a financial institution organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Mississippi (“Cadence”). 

WHEREAS, the City has decided to place public fund deposits with one or more 
qualified financial institutions in order to maximize efficiency and economy and to further 
achieve its financial goals; and 

WHEREAS, the City solicited bids from qualified financial institutions to serve as 
public funds, depositories, as provided by Sections 27-105-1 through 27-105-371 (the “Act”) of 
the Mississippi Code of 1972 as amended, for the designation of a depository for a certain 
duration; and 

WHEREAS, based on the identity of the bids received, the City elected to submit the 
selection of its municipal depository to the State Treasurer pursuant to §27-105-305, and the 
State Treasurer found that Cadence complies with the Mississippi statutory requirements under 
Sections 27-105-303 et seq. for qualification as a public fund depository; and 

WHEREAS, Cadence submitted its bid proposal to be a public fund depository for the 
City on which copy of said proposal is attached as Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, Cadence has been selected by the State Treasurer as the primary depository 
bank of public funds and financial institution for all of the City’s demand deposit accounts and 
by review and determination dated January 14, 2026 and effective as of February 1, 2026 (the 
“Effective Date”), which copy of said determination and selection is attached as Exhibit B (the 
“State Treasurer Selection”); and 

WHEREAS, the City acknowledged such selection and spread upon its minutes by 
resolution dated January 20, 2026, attached hereto as Exhibit C (the “Resolution of 
Acknowledgment”); and  

WHEREAS, all parties to this Agreement intend to fully comply with the applicable 
federal, state and local laws and/or ordinances relating to Cadence functioning as a legal 
depository of public funds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions and agreements herein 
contained and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the City and Cadence hereby agree as follows: 

Article 1.  Service.  As selected by the State Treasurer and acknowledged by the City, Cadence 
agrees to serve as primary depository bank as defined by the Act and to serve as primary 
financial institution as provided herein.  The primary depository bank and financial institution 

EXHIBIT "B"



shall maintain the City’s demand deposit accounts, provide usual and customary account 
services, and assist the City in its dealings with other depository banks if any.  The City, in its 
discretion shall place public funds in demand deposit accounts with Cadence.  The Mayor and 
City Clerk shall from time to time designate which employees of the City shall have authority to 
transact on the City’s demand deposit accounts with Cadence (being any and all accounts now or 
hereafter maintained under tax identification numbers of the City of Tupelo Water and Light 
Department, or of the Tupelo Coliseum Commission) and to enter into operating, cash 
management, funds transfer, night depository, safe deposit box, and agreements for other such 
usual and customary services.  For the City’s internal control purposes, each such transaction 
shall require the signatures (whether original or facsimile) of at least two (2) such employees and 
in the case of transactions on any account now or hereafter maintained under tax identification 
numbers of the City or of the Tupelo Water and Light Department, at least one (1) of which shall 
be the Mayor or the City Clerk and in the case of transactions on any account now or hereafter 
maintained under the tax identification number of the Tupelo Coliseum Commission, at least one 
(1) of which shall be the Coliseum Director or the City Clerk.  Cadence further agrees to assist 
the City by serving as the depository for all of the City’s demand deposit accounts in accordance 
with the terms of the Resolution and this Agreement.  The City reserves the right to invest all 
other public funds on a competitive basis to any qualified depositories. 
 
Article 2.  Interest Rate.  The interest rate to be paid on all accounts shall be a fixed rate 2.90%.  
 
Article 3.  Term.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the term of the 
Agreement is for twenty-four (24) months from the Effective Date unless otherwise specified by 
law. 
 
Article 4.  Continuing Obligations.  Cadence has a continuing obligation to qualify as a public 
funds depository in accordance with Section 27-105-303 et seq. of the Act. 
 
Article 5.  FDIC.  Cadence’s accounts at all times must be insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation to the extent required by law. 
 
Article 6.  Capital to Total Assets Ratio.  As a financial institution that has been in existence for 
more than three (3) years and is qualified as a public fund depository and public funds guaranty 
pool member under Section 27-105-5 and 27-105-315 of the Act, Cadence must have a primary 
capital to total assets ratio of five and one-half percent (5 ½%) or more as certified by the 
Mississippi State Treasurer and in accordance with Sections 27-105-5 and 27-105-315 of the 
Act. 
 
Article 7.  Security.  (A)  Cadence shall provide as security for its deposits only, those bonds, 
notes and other obligations permitted by Sections 27-105-5 and 27-105-315 of the Act.  (B)  In 
the alternative, Cadence shall be a participating member of the Mississippi Guaranteed Pooling 
Program administered by the Mississippi State Treasurer’s office. 
 
Article 8.  Service Charges.  Cadence will impose a flat fee of $500 for service charges exclusive 
of merchant fees in connection with the City’s deposits into any of its accounts.  No fee will be 
charged for any returned items or overdrafts to its deposit accounts.  Cadence will not charge 



interest on overdrafts nor will it charge any fee for issuing cashier’s checks.  Cadence will not 
impose any charges on (i) incoming or outgoing wire transfers, (ii) stop payments, (iii) 
depository bags and locks, (iv)multiple account statements, (v) cash management fees, (vi) check 
orders or (vii) safekeeping of the securities. 
 
Article 9.  Compliance.  Cadence agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws and/or 
ordinances relating to the functioning as a legal depository of public funds.  The parties 
recognize that changes in the federal, state and local laws and ordinances may occur after the 
Effective Date of this Agreement; however, the parties agree that Cadence has a continuing 
obligation to comply with all federal, state and local laws relating to the functioning as a legal 
depository of public funds upon any subsequent amendments to the aforementioned laws.  
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Cadence agrees to comply at all 
times with the Act. 
 
Article 10.  Notice Upon Subsequent Changes.  Cadence shall notify the City in writing, within 
five (5) business days of any change in the ownership of Cadence or the placement of Cadence 
into bankruptcy, conservatorship or receivership, whether voluntary or involuntary, during the 
effective dates of this Agreement. 
 
Article 11.  Termination.  The parties may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to the other party only upon an Event of Default as defined in Article 14 below 
and only after the party in default has been given thirty (30) days in which to cure the default. 
 
Article 12.  Continuous Record.  Cadence agrees to make this Agreement an official and 
continuous record of Cadence. 
 
Article 13.  Reservation.  The City reserves the right to reduce, increase or vary the amount of 
public funds on deposit in its sole discretion.  The city reserves the right, but is not obligated to 
invest other public funds on a competitive basis with one or more qualified depositories subject 
to the approval by the City. 
 
Article 14.  Event of Default.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following shall be 
deemed to be an Event of Default under this Agreement: 

 
Article 14.1.  The City shall fail to perform or comply with any term, provision or 
covenant of this Agreement, and such failure is not cured within thirty (30) days after 
written notice is given to the City. 
 
Article 14.2.  Cadence shall fail to perform or comply with any term, provision or 
covenant of this agreement, and such failure is not cured within thirty (30) days after 
written notice is given to Cadence. 

 
Article 15.  Remedies. 

 
Article 15.1.  Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default by the City which is not cured 
within the specified time period in Article 14.1 above, Cadence may (i) terminate this 



Agreement and (ii) exercise each and every remedy otherwise available at law or in 
equity.  Any failure to exercise any such option should not constitute a waiver of the right 
to exercise the same at any other time. 
 
Article 15.2.  Upon the occurrence of an event of Default by Cadence which is not cured 
within the specified time period in Article 14.2. above, the City may (i) terminate this 
Agreement and (ii) exercise each and every remedy otherwise available at law or in 
equity.  Any failure to exercise any such option should not constitute a waiver of the right 
to exercise the same at any other time. 

 
Article 16.  Notices.  All notice, consent or other communication required or permitted to be 
given by any provision of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been 
duly and properly given or served for any purpose only if delivered personally with receipt 
acknowledged or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage and 
charges prepaid, or sent by a nationally reputable courier or service with all costs prepaid, and 
addressed to the other party at the address listed below. 
Notices shall be to: 
 
 To the City:  City of Tupelo, Mississippi 
    Attn:  Honorable Todd Jordan  

City Clerk/CFO Kim Hanna 
    Post Office Box 1485 
    Tupelo, MS  38802 
 
 To Cadence:  Cadence Bank 
    Attn:   
  
 
 With Copies to: _______________________________________ 
    _______________________________________ 
    _______________________________________ 
    _______________________________________ 
 
Article 17.  Miscellaneous.   

 
Article 17.1.  Time is of the essence of the parties’ obligation hereunder. 
 
Article 17.2.  This instrument incorporates the entire agreement among the parties hereto, 
regardless of anything to the contrary contained in any other instrument or notice 
purporting to summarize the terms hereof, whether or not the same shall be recorded or 
published. 
 
Article 17.3.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which 
shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  Each party specifically consents to the execution of this Agreement by 
facsimile. 



 
Article 17.4.  This Agreement may be modified or amended upon the written consent of 
the City and Cadence.  Upon the effectiveness of any modifications or amendment 
hereto, the parties shall be bound by the terms and provisions thereof. 
 
Article 17.5.  Unless the context otherwise requires, when used herein, the singular 
includes the plural and vice-versa and the masculine includes the feminine and neuter and 
vice-versa.  A person deemed to include a person, firm, corporation or other entity. 
 
Article 17.6.  This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties 
hereto, their legal representatives, successors and assigns. 
 
Article 17.7.  Captions are inserted for convenience only and shall not be given any legal 
effect. 
 
Article 17.8.  This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the 
laws of the State of Mississippi, including, but not limited to, the State’s statutes of 
limitations. 
 
Article 17.9.  No delay or failure by either party to exercise any right under this 
Agreement, and no partial or singular exercise of that right, shall constitute a waiver of 
that or any other right, unless otherwise expressly provided herein. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date and year 
first above written. 

 
 
CITY OF TUPELO, MISSISSIPPI      CADENCE BANK 

 
 

 
 

By: _____________________________                By: ___________________________ 
       Todd Jordan, its mayor                     

 
          Its: ___________________________ 
ATTEST: 

 
 

__________________________ 
Kim Hanna, CFO/ City Clerk 



TO: 

FROM: 

DATE 

SUBJECT: 

City Council 

Lucia Randle, Director of DTMSA 

January 20, 2026 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 2026 MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR 

CONTINUATION AS A MISSISSIPPI MAIN STREET ASSOCIATION 

DESIGNATED COMMUNITY LR  

Request: Approval of the annual MOA with MS Main Street. 

AGENDA REQUEST 



 

  Page 1 

 
 

2026 MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
FOR CONTINUATION AS A 

MISSISSIPPI MAIN STREET ASSOCIATION 
DESIGNATED COMMUNITY 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into and executed by the Mississippi Main Street Association 
(“MMSA”) and                                                          , hereinafter referred to as the “local program.” 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is for the purpose of implementing the local Main Street program through 
continued participation as a Mississippi Main Street Designated Community. In consideration 
of the executed agreement, the parties agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 
 
SECTION I. MMSA AGREES TO: 
 
1. Designate the MMSA Director of Community Services to be the point of contact for the 

local program director. The team member will be available to answer questions and 
provide advice and information via email or telephone. The team member will review and 
approve semi-annual reports, participate in the selection of new local directors, and 
respond to other program requests as mutually agreed upon.  

 
2. Provide at least one annual Main Street 101 training opportunity available to all local 

program directors, board members, committee members, and government 
representatives from the Main Street communities. MMSA will provide all materials 
related to training. 

 
3. Provide access to online training in the Main Street Approach™. 

 
4. Provide trainings, workshops, meetings, and/or conferences to further develop and 

enhance the skills of local directors and board members with the opportunity for the local 
program to earn an annual Mississippi Main Street Professional Certification.  

 
5. Host an annual Main Street Directors’ Retreat, which is required to be attended by the 

local program director. 
 
 



  Page 2 

6. Provide an annual calendar with the dates and locations of MMSA-approved trainings, 
workshops, meetings, retreats, and conferences, if possible, at the beginning of the 
calendar year. 

 
7. Provide one annual on-site visit for community services as requested by the local program 

director to the Director of Community Services, at which point a meeting will be scheduled 
for a mutually agreed upon time. Community services may include, but are not limited to 
design and planning services, local market analysis, communication and marketing 
consultation, retail and small business training, festival and event development, volunteer 
training, budget development, economic development assistance, and business 
recruitment, retention, and expansion assistance.  Additional requests for community 
visits may be subject to a nominal fee to cover administrative and travel expenses. 
Requests contingent on community’s good standing with MMSA.   
 

8. Provide annual grant opportunities for community services as funding allows.   
 
9. Provide Main Street America Member Hub, an online community forum in partnership 

with the National Main Street Center, as a resource for local programs.  
 

10. Facilitate and promote ongoing marketing of MMSA and its individual local programs. 
 
11. Provide and grant each Designated Community use of the official MMSA Designated 

Community logo and other promotional materials with MMSA branding. 
 
12. Provide all local programs with regular updates on industry news, grant opportunities, 

and information from our partner organizations.  
 

13. Provide legislative education and advocacy for Main Street at the state and national level. 
 
14. Collect economic development data from local programs and publish statewide economic 

development statistics in an annual report to members and investors. 
 

15. Provide an Annual Awards application where Nationally Accredited programs in good 
standing may submit nominations and be judged by an impartial jury of professionals with 
the opportunity of winning and being recognized at the Annual Awards Luncheon in 
June.  
 

16. Conduct biennial on-site Progress Review to assess the local program’s progress and assist 
with the local program’s state compliance and accreditation standards as outlined by 
Main Street America. 

 
 
 
 



  Page 3 

SECTION II. THE LOCAL PROGRAM AGREES TO: 
1. Be in good standing with MMSA: pay all dues and fees, submit all reports and information 

(including both semi-annual online reports) on time, and achieve annual Mississippi Main 
Street Professional Certification. 

 
2. Send the local program director to the annual Directors’ Retreat. 

 
3. The local program director shall achieve the annual Mississippi Main Street Professional 

Certification by attending MMSA-approved training events. The community shall be 
responsible for the director's travel costs and expenses associated with these meetings. A 
list of approved trainings is attached to this agreement as Exhibit A. 
 

4. Maintain the focus of the local program within the boundaries of the Main Street district as 
designated in the local program’s application for membership, or subsequent 
amendments. 
 

5. Maintain broad-based community support for the local program by the public and private 
sectors through financial contributions and in-kind or volunteer support.  

 
6. Promote and encourage a historic preservation ethic for the local program, including 

advocacy for good design, encouragement of building rehabilitation and adaptive reuse, 
promotion of financial incentives, and advancement of planning policies appropriate for 
preservation. 

 
7. Implement the Main Street Approach™ recommended by MMSA and the National Main 

Street Center, including the development of an annual work plan for the local program 
that includes projects centered around the community’s transformation strategies. 

 
8. Maintain a strong, broad-based organizational system that includes an active board of 

directors that holds monthly or bi-monthly meetings throughout the year and committees 
or task teams with designated board members as chairpersons. 

 
9. Employ a full-time equivalent local program director (or part-time director working 20+ 

hours if the community is under 5,000 in population) implementing the Main Street 
program in the community. The local program director shall serve as the primary point of 
contact for all MMSA-related matters. In the event the local program director position 
becomes vacant, the local program shall notify MMSA within thirty (30) days and the 
position shall be filled within four (4) months of the vacancy. In addition, during any 
vacancy, the local program shall provide MMSA with an interim primary point of contact 
(e.g., board president) for all MMSA-related matters. 

 
10. Maintain a separate Main Street budget with adequate funding for daily office operations 

and travel commitments for the local director to attend trainings, workshops, meetings, 
retreats, and conferences as required by this agreement. 



  Page 4 

11. Include the MMSA Designated Community logo on website, print and electronic 
newsletters, and all MMSA grant-funded project marketing materials according to the 
brand guidelines established and provided by MMSA.  

 
12. Be an Accredited or Affiliate Member in good standing with the National Main Street 

Center. Affiliate status for two or more consecutive years may result in a program review 
by MMSA staff. 

 
13. Provide the MMSA Director of Communication and Marketing with your annual event 

calendar as well as news of your local program’s projects and accomplishments so that 
MMSA may promote them. 
 

14. Agree to not make any false or malicious statements, either written or oral, or cause or 
encourage others to make any statements, regarding MMSA, its operations, policies, 
practices, services, or current and former officers, directors, staff, consultants, and 
representatives. Any personal issues should be privately and directly communicated to 
the Executive Director. 
 

15. Include MMSA staff in the hiring and selection process of new local program directors. 
 

16. File all applicable IRS forms in accordance with state and federal tax laws to remain in 
good standing with both state and federal agencies.  

 
17. Submit Payment of 2026 MMSA dues by January 30, 2026.  
 
18. Complete the annual Director’s Survey (online) with required attachments no later than 

Oct. 30, 2026. 
 

 
SECTION III. MMSA AND THE LOCAL PROGRAM JOINTLY AGREE THAT: 
 
1. This agreement may be modified only by written amendment executed by all parties and 

approved by the MMSA Executive Director. 
 

2. The term of this agreement shall be for one calendar year, beginning on January 1, 2026, 
and expiring on December 31, 2026. This agreement shall not be binding upon the parties 
until it contains all signatures and is approved by the MMSA Executive Director. 

 
3. Either party may terminate this agreement without penalty by giving written notice to the 

other party at least sixty (60) days before the effective date of such termination. 
 

4. This agreement shall be interpreted under the laws of the State of Mississippi. Any 
litigation under this agreement shall be resolved exclusively in a federal or state court of 
competent jurisdiction located in Mississippi. 



  Page 5 

5. Both parties shall jointly indemnify and hold each other and their respective employees, 
officers, directors, and assigned harmless from and against all activities, losses, costs, 
liabilities, claims, damages, and expenses of every kind and character. 

 
6. If any provision of this agreement is held unenforceable, then such provision will be 

modified to reflect the parties’ intention. Any and all remaining provisions of this 
agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
7. The failure by one party to require performance of any provision shall not affect that 

party’s right to require performance at any time thereafter, nor shall a waiver of any 
breach or default of this agreement constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or 
default or of the provision itself. 

 
8. Except as expressly set forth herein, the services to be provided under this agreement are 

furnished as is, where is, with all faults and without warranty of any kind, express or 
implied, including any warranty of merchantability or fitness for any particular purpose.  

 
9. If a local program fails to comply with the provisions of this Memorandum of Agreement 

(MOA), MMSA will send the local program a written initial notice that summarizes the non-
compliance issues and provides guidance on how to resolve them. MMSA will re-evaluate 
the local program 90 days following the initial notice. If the issues are still unresolved, the 
local program shall be placed on probationary status and shall be ineligible for any 
services or grant funds from MMSA until the local program is compliant. If issues are 
unresolved for six months from the initial letter, MMSA will issue a final notice. If the local 
program fails to comply with the provisions of this MOA within 90 days of the final notice, 
the local program will be de-certified with an official letter from MMSA. At that point, the 
community will have to start a new application process if they wish to rejoin the 
association.  
  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the following parties have executed this agreement: 
 
By:     _________________________________________________________________________________________      _____________________________________ 

Lucia Randle         Date 
Main Street Director                   

 
Acknowledged: 

 
 _________________________________________________________________________________________      _____________________________________  

Mayor of the City of Tupelo       Date 
 

_________________________________________________________________________________________      ______________________________________
 Jeannie Waller Zieren, Executive Director    Date  

Mississippi Main Street Association 



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Abby Christian, Grant Writer 

DATE 20 January 2026 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF AWARD RFQ NUMBER 2025-044PW TO COOK 

COGGIN ENGINEERS FOR TARGET ROAD WATER PROJECT 
  

Request: This engineering will include design engineering and preliminary engineering for the 

Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) grant application. Attached are the engineering RFP, 

contract with Cook Coggin, and RFP evaluation score. 

 

















     REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES #2025-044WL 

City of Tupelo 

 

City of Tupelo requests proposals from qualified firms or individuals to provide Engineering 

services for work related to an application for a water infrastructure project with potential funding 

from: Appalachian Regional Commission and/or other federal funding agencies. This Request for 

Proposal includes the preparation of a preliminary cost estimate to be used in the application and 

project Engineering services if the project is awarded. You are invited to submit a proposal, in 

accordance with this request, to City Hall, 71 E, Troy Street, Tupelo MS 38804, Attention Cade 

Armstrong no later than 3:00 p.m. on Wednesday, December 31, 2025.  

 

The Engineer will be responsible for performing all Engineering services through project closeout 

in accordance with federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and policies. The scope of work 

includes but is not limited the following: 1) prepare preliminary cost estimate and preliminary 

Engineering report; and if grant is awarded 2) prepare plans and specifications, 3) distribute bid 

documents, 4) assist in bid opening and prepare bid tabulation, 5) assist in the execution of 

construction contracts, 6) hold preconstruction conference, and 7) perform construction inspection 

including periodic reports to City of Tupelo and approve all payment requests. 

 

The City of Tupelo is an Equal Opportunity Employer. City of Tupelo encourages Minority owned 

Business Enterprises (MBEs) and Woman owned Business Enterprises (WBEs) to submit 

proposals.  

 

All proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope and marked with the following 

language on the outside of the package: Proposal for Engineering Services with Bid Number 

2025-044WL. Proposals will be evaluated on the following factors: Qualifications, (40 points), 

Experience (40 points) and Capacity for Performance (20 points). To be evaluated properly, the 

following must be addressed in detail: 

 

Qualifications – List of qualifications of person to be assigned to project. 

 

Experience – Information regarding the firm’s experience and the projects previously undertaken, 

including the type and amount of grants awarded, the projects activities, and the status of projects. 

 

Capacity for Performance – Identify the number and title of staff assigned to provide services. 

 

The City of Tupelo will evaluate each proposal. They may hold proposals for a period of not to 

exceed thirty (30) days for the purpose of reviewing the content of the proposals and investigating 

the qualifications of the firms and assigned individuals. The City of Tupelo reserves the right to 

reject and/or all proposals.  

  

Subject to grant award and the removal of all environmental conditions, the City of Tupelo will 

award a contract with the qualified individual or firm whose proposal has the highest number of 

cumulative points issued by the selection committee and determined to be the most advantageous 

to the City of Tupelo, price and other factors considered. The contract will include scope and extent 

of work and other essential requirements. An individual contract will be executed for the awarded 



project, and the contract will be on a fixed price basis. The City of Tupelo has the authority to 

terminate the selection at any time.   

 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

PLEASE PUBLISH AS A LEGAL AD IN THE DAILY JOURNAL ON Tuesday, December 9th and 

Tuesday, December 16th, 2025. 

 

Note: Please send certified proofs of publication to:  

 

Shelley Adams 

Three Rivers PDD  

Post Office Box 690  

Pontotoc, Mississippi 38863  

 

and  

 

City of Tupelo  

Attn: Abby Christian  

71 East Troy Street 

Tupelo MS 38804 

 

Bill to: City of Tupelo 



 
AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 

TO:  Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Alex Farned, Director 

DATE January 20, 2026 

SUBJECT:  IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR THE TUPELO 

AQUATIC CENTER POOL LINER 
  

 

Request:  

I would like to recommend that the City Council and Mayor approve the contract for Memphis 

Pool Supply Company, Inc, for the Tupelo Aquatic Center pool liner and allow the Mayor to sign 

contract.  This contract has been approved by Legal. 

Note:  The contract is attached to this request. 

 



















































TO: City Council 

FROM: Alex Farned, Director of Parks & Recreation 

DATE January 20, 2026 

SUBJECT: IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AWARD FOR THE BID FOR THE 

BALLARD PARK LAKESHORE IMPROVEMENTS. AF 

Request: 

I would like to recommend to the Mayor and City Council that we award the Ballard Park 
Lakeshore improvements bid to Allterra Construction, LLC based on their submitted proposal in 
the amount of $373,000.00. 

Attachments: 
Recommendation Letter
Certified Bid Tab. 

AGENDA REQUEST 







 

TO:  City Council 

 

FROM: Alex Farned, Director of Parks & Recreation 

  

DATE January 20, 2026 

 

SUBJECT:  PR: IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR THE BALLARD 

PARK LAKESHORE IMPROVEMENTS. JAN2026 
  

 

 

 
Request: 

 

I would like to recommend that the City Council and Mayor approve the contract for Allterra 

Construction, LLC, for Ballard Park Lakeshore Improvements and allow the Mayor to sing contract. 

This contract has been approved by legal.  

 

Note:  

The contract is attached to this request.  

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

AGENDA REQUEST  

 

 


























